NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda and the address
of its principal place of business is 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
shown in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of approximately HK$145.716 million.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable
and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer terms.

Included in current liabilities are bank borrowings of
HK$342.848 million which contain a repayment on
demand clause. Based on the Group’s credit history and
historical relationship with the banks, the directors of
the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will demand immediate repayment but rather such
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with their
scheduled repayment dates as disclosed in Note 6(a)(iv).
Accordingly, principal and interest payments due within
the next twelve months from the reporting date amounted
to HK$129.122 million.

In order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the directors of the Company have taken
measures such as closing down under-performing retail
stores and implementing various cost control measures
to reduce the costs of operations. The Group continues
with the implementation of the aforementioned measures
in order to achieve further improvement of the Group’s
liquidity in short term and long-term periods.

The directors of the Company have taken into account the
cash requirements of the Group for the next twelve months
commencing from the end of the reporting period. With
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$60.314
million as at 31 March 2023, other potential sources of
funding, and continued adoption of the above measures,
the directors have therefore concluded that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to fully meet its
financial obligations when they fall due. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BT KRBT EBMEREER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group had early applied the Amendments to
HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021, for the year ended 31 March
2022.

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 April 2022 for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment:

(@
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Use fH3KH
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of AV e EREEH - BT S
Fulfilling a Contract HI7MABETA) AR
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual B MBS R BB SAEZE A PRk
Framework ERLAIPHES)
Annual Improvements  Annual Improvements to U R B B s A
Project HKFRS Standard 2018-2020 A BEUOE(20184F
£20204 1)
Amendments to Merger Accounting for ERHETIH5E S P 5 P 2 5
Accounting Guideline 5 Common Control (BFTA) Gatig

Combination

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. ARSI EBMBEREER )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) CHEMEEKREMNTITIREIETE
effective BRI MR E R
The Group has not early applied new standard, A A I e L8 T 1A 20224E4 H 1 H
amendments to standards and interpretation that have BH ify 2 PV A i 0L L 1 o A 3
been issued but are not yet effective for the financial WRT ~ RABTT Mk R vk 5 R £ e
year beginning 1 April 2022. The new standard, HI o 255 HAT ~ KB HT Mene FEAE e B
amendments to standards and interpretation include 5 it e U A0 5 DA R AT RE B 23 W AR
the following which may be relevant to the Group. B HER o

Effective for
accounting periods

of the group
beginning on or after
FEER
PRNEE A
BB HBLEXR
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non- 1 April 2024
current
A a1 5% (B RT A B SR B B AR 202444 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 April 2024
A ERHEREE 5% (B RT A B 2k A JF A B £ f 20244F4H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 April 2023
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
A Gt S v B G Rt BOR R 202344 H1H
T E QB R 2 58 (B RTA)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 April 2023
A E e 8 5% (5 RT 4 L EREEEOREE 202344 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities 1 April 2023
Arising from a Single Transaction
AHERHERE 129 (EaTA) B R E R R R E XA AR R 202344 H1H
IESERLIH
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 April 2024
A v PR 4l 1B 1 658 (B AT A%) B 4% Iml AHL A0 AL B 4 f 2024F4H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture by HKICPA
A S RS T 0% BEH LHBE AR SEE SR EE A3 H AR
A gt eI 2898 (BRTA) AR B & st E
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 April 2024

Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
R REAR 598 (20204F) SR R A 2 i — 0 S (L R AR A 20244F4H1H
A E W B Z AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. AW RLIEITEBMBEREER )

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
investment properties and certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

(b) EEMENRERNHTREETE
BB ERER )

AR B AE 35 5 0 AT S AR RTHE L
T JRE 40 ] TR0 o) B s AT
FEAG o FURD T Al > PRANZ G
FUJ 3 55 A 55 3R AR TR B ]
RETEMRAL o

EFEETHER

AN R B S S R T 8 IR S A AR A
B BRUAT G RHECR T 5 A B 2 A (B
W3 B B i L HAR AR T -

A BAE A 7 U PO i T U AR S S R
FARMAE TEEGRHGE > B HRE A
P TR FA A S T 8 R SRE IR A L B o TS
PER P BB A B R T A
B 7 s R ) S R R A A T

A il e B P S BT BR A 0 B B I
FIE -

B () A RA A
2023 FFAFHR

54



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBEKR )

55

(@)

Business Combination

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity. When
assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the income
statement and statement of other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. IEETHBRE®R
(@) Business Combination (Continued) (@ XBastdE
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling A £ [ BRI 22 1) 1 M s AT T NI
interests that do not result in a loss of control as R LA TINE 2 28 5 1y B SR B RE
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A A NS G o PEb PENE a5 ) 5
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment B g M IR G IR T (L
between the carrying amounts of the controlling R R B - LS R A B JBS 2 W 22 AR
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative BIREAE o BIRPEMIVENE 42 2 T B
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between LA G 2 WA AT AR o T A A 22
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling FAAEA S WA N A HE 25 T 1Y 28 7
interests and any consideration paid or received TRt rh iR

is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity A B R 2R 6 PR RE [ 2 i R
account for an investment because of a loss of EN-Z PR Wi SRk ety
control, joint control or significant influence, any AR 25 A BRIFE > N B S 2 AT £
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its BB i BT R R HATHE - ARIR
fair value with the change in carrying amount T 588 BB 1 1 i AR o L HC AR AHR S
recognised in the income statement. This fair value & AT~ SEDERMBEEE L
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes REAMEST > BEAFE AP IR IR T -
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest LEAb - S5 A A 2 T W 4 e 0 B 5
as an associated company, joint venture or financial EHA B AT SRR I A £ 2
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised HEHEAMEERAEZ T AA
in other comprehensive income in respect of that M o WG AT RE R AR ST A7 AL 2 TR 4R
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly TifE R 2 <5 B0 1) A0 s B 5 i A e )
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may ZHUE /TR SCE R B R A AR
mean that amounts previously recognised in other A 22 5 — JEUICHE - (58 A SE BT
comprehensive income are reclassified to the income BN A PR SR A B s> B R
statement or transferred to another category of equity B L F] e RE S O By - IR AE
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. 7 JFLAth 22 THT WA i e R ) 42 L 91 R A <6

GRS R EO 2 R4 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEETBERAHA
(@) Business Combination (Continued) (@ XBastdE
The acquisition method of accounting is used to A A I BR R WSO I 5 B AT & D 2605 5
account for all business combinations, regardless AR (63455 i Js 340 43 E 2l FE At
of whether equity instruments or other assets are FE) o WS — ] B B 2 ] 2 e O
acquired. The consideration transferred for the AT -

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred o JTHGEEEMAFEE

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the o BN T AT BEA NPT R
acquired business ffif

e equity interests issued by the Group o ARERH T HEAT AN HE 45 O A

EHFHE

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from o HECAAAUIE L P BT E AR A AT AR
a contingent consideration arrangement, and HRES AR ATE s &

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in o PRE A AT AR S HT A RRERY 2
the subsidiary. PR

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and T8 205 & D AR 2 v BT SO B9 T sk

contingent liabilities assumed in a business 7 LA K B R A0S 1 B R BROR A (B

combination are, with limited exceptions, measured DEB AME RSN > Bl i E H %

initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. HAHEAEVIERHE o A MR T

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in W M A 42 RO REE i L A P (B e O

the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition 2 P REE 2o A5 A i T PR 1) TR O

basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling (ER PN

interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

5 7 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EERETHES)
(@ Business Combination (Continued) (@ XBastdE

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. WSS R AR T A R S B

The excess of the: A

e consideration transferred, o AR

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the o WU TS AT AT I B TRORE A <
acquired entity, and oK

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous o AEARTST T A w2 PR
equity interest in the acquired entity over the W B ) 2 A S f R A P ik
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired BEAT R E E R EZ AFE
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are o HC S DA RS AR o dno
less than the fair value of the net identifiable AR - CORERE IR IR A K
assets of the business acquired, the difference is SERT R A 2 HE g R A RRR
recognised directly in the income statement as i W5 5 S 8 W) A R 2
a bargain purchase. SAH - H PR R R i R

RS -

Contingent consideration is classified either as R ARE  BU REA B B A - )

equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as HAemAamnemARE A THEE

a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to et IR AR i R RS ATH

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the ST o

consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, i ZE 5 A 040 B B 2 B > i 7 A
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s R 2 W s 75 IR HEAE 51 AU 2 R IRE
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is ToHR WO H 2 AHEE AR
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any o I A AR A A AT A e 4R
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are FR e R A R o

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

B () A RA A 58
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESHBEE
(b) Separate financial statements (b) BIYBMBHRR
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost A B JE 2 ) 1) 5 4% AR B ek (B 51
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable WE o BUAS IR 46 8 & 19 B 42 E AL %
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are A o AN TG R s F I SE AR AR R E
accounted for by the Company on the basis of s R RSB AR

dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries ik 17 B g 2 ) ) 5 7 A TR R A
is required upon receiving dividends from these WA Jag 2> ) IR A S 1 2 T S A
investments if the dividend exceeds the total AR B 5% S B0 R 8 S B R
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the TAT 14 U TR (0 2 430 3 R (L
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying (BOHE P &) R &5 G WS R A A BR T
amount of the investment in the separate financial (8 > R SR 5% 55 IS R ZE 3 72 5 4
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the EOEAT I E R -

financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

() Segment reporting () ZDHEEHE
Operating segments are reported in a manner B YR WAt gy Bl A
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the PR R AR 2 O 2

chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors AN A B BARATECE 5 5 E A Tk
as the chief operating decision makers to review the R > HE RS HEE R AL M
operating results of the Group on a consolidated EHEER - WAR RIS RE -

basis, and makes strategic decisions.

(d) Foreign currency translation d) HEwE
(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) RERBHENE

Items included in the financial statements of A B2 [T 8 1S 2 S R
each of the Group’s entities are measured RTEEZHE - B ER
using the currency of the primary economic ZEEEEM R BHFE
environment in which the entity operates (the UL T RE B o ARG BB IR
“functional currency”). The financial statements KTV EH - B AARL
are presented in HK$, which is the functional A2 U KA B
currency of the Company and presentation W o

currency of the Group.

59 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated income statement. All foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “other
gains, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when fair value
was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair values are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) are recognised in income statement
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets/equity investments are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBER )

SNESIRE ()

(d)  Foreign currency translation (Continued) (d)

(i) ZEEE T2 A

61

(iii)  Group companies

The results and balance sheet of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities, and of borrowings, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTHEHE)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

(e)

Y3 - WERR R

WIS ~ W B R S A Tl AR
It K 2 BB E R AR o B S A
BLIE B PR B I R TE S

B BLIA H A7 B 2 R AR AL A 2 AT RE VR
ARLEE - DARIE H A BERT S8 A
> HAR AL G5t AEE Z Rk
{0 BCfE 0 2% 8 S R (A28 19 DL T
SE) o wHA BB SLE E IO E A
Z BT (P B AR DA AL D o T
FC bR R AR 2 BT A 7 A B O )
TR W R ATER o

Fof 7 < 48 DL AL TR Al s AT
FRAE S A 73 BE A R R - B
PRAAERIT -

follows:

Leasehold land Shorter of remaining lease term HE L 2R T A R0 s e ) 47 B
or useful life (AR 2 1 1)

Buildings Shorter of the unexpired lease T K E AL k20 2 5048
term or 20 to 50 years (DA 35y HE)

Equipment and leasehold 3 to 10 years or over the lease Bl 3E10F S E M

improvements term R
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 15 years Y& 3F154F
Motor vehicles 5 years R 54

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTBEHE)

63

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains/(losses), net”.

Investment properties

Investment properties principally leasehold land and
buildings are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at fair value at the date of transfer
from property, plant and equipment. Differences
between the costs and fair values of the properties
are recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequently,
they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in consolidated income statement as
part of other income.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

(e)

®

VI3 - MR RRE )

ik 7 2 R T (L A0 LAl T i ]
A > P FL R TR (L1 RO Bl 2 T i [l
B -

A 2 18 45 4 LU I P A K I B 1
EREE > M at A% & i & [ HAb
t,/ (k58 » WA A

REME

BEY SRR AL W A R
at > (RS oy AR A T R AT 2 9
3 o BRI - AR S
BN B IE N TETE SR o P36 A
A BN ST 2 [H] B 22 B e R 20 T Al fok
fHf o BEfR > HUATEERR - &F
R 2 BB TEAR A I dd R 81 m 2 H
MBI AR — &3 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(]

Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Goodwill

Goodwill is subsequently measured as
disclosed in Note 4(j). Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life and are not amortised but tested
annually for impairment.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 30 years.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBER )

65

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in income statement.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTHEHE)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in two
categories:

o financial assets at amortised cost; and

J financial assets designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) with no recycling
of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets
are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

(h)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial assets at
amortised cost only if both of the following
criteria are met:

. the financial asset is held within a
business model with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
includes trade and other receivables, deposit
and bank balances.

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (Equity
investment)

The Group makes an election to designate its
equity investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through
income statement. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in income statement as other
income.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4.

FEEHBER A

(h)

TRTAZEARKILRR @)

(1)

=B ()
B A R

AT 7] 5382 LA 6 B
A S Ll AR S5
AT -

o ERMNEREREDIWIRG B
SRR H AR
[EESRELTAES

o BRI E A M E L
19 B 4 L R LA AR A
RAEA SRR SAS -

A% R o 2 G AR R 4
HE AR 5 M Al R IR
A RS REE B o

18 5E Byt RE RN A A &R &
ST 4 2 A < P (W4 T
H) o

A AR JH T A U R 45 ey 2R 4R
16 78 1 508 DL SR (E REA A
ENEE A NTIE L C DN i 4
RN o 2 5 B LA H: A 4 THG
Wi i R R o W% S B4R DL
TR BN AR E
WA AR ANB R E R
DI R R o M AR
FE o 7 H A 2 T AR BT 2
Z R AR B R SR IE R OR
Al ) s B A S
1k o A R > wZ o S
CRvT [a]) v 2 25t S R
R B A o TS (e A
Hit - RSB HREZRE
A o BB LA SR EFF AR
it o BRAA SR R A K A 2 T
Wit - #R R aE RS s HiAth
A e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTHBEEKR )

69

@i

()

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition.
The Group must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of the asset’s previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHEEGA)

(]

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for all debt instruments not held
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

71

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. TESHEEGE)
(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) k SREERERE
General approach (Continued) — AR Ty i (4

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1: Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2: Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL.

Stage 3: Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBEGR)
(k) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) b EREERERE
Simplified approach 1L 7y %

U]

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component, if any, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred.

Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, except for the right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()  Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ir)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in income statement if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
properties and lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

4.

TEEFBER A
o HEEHH
(i) AEBELRHNA )

(if)

ik i B s ) 25 8 8 A BOR A A
BT EEEE > BAL F BTl R
AR B (L 4% £ TS0 B A Y 2
SR - ol DR R A A 4R
T B AT B R - AU
oA kR R RE T AR O o H
HEARTUENE - MU
By AE R R R AR e
AR E W (T RE O AR W
(6 > 2 f o PR O AR AT 3k
BE > A B AR

=

ASE FI AT A PR S R
) fi FT) R W e AL B B
BIAR A EEAREN -

PIEE 7 RN

fisi A< S B 2y AR N R AH
TRt E —HA R A RE
HERREHE - MHEHE
R B 4T AR A 1 48 K
H o BB B R o 5 R e
BUR B o A 8 R w21
W ZHEws» B AKER
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHEEGA)

(m)

Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
subcontracting fee. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Provision for inventories are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
within “other operating expenses”.

(m)

FE

JEBA L ~ A S it B SRS i 4 A B T
SEBHE Z BIRESIR o AR E
HMPR R 5 T o BRI 2
WA BRI BIAE - CIEE
A B BA SRR 8] 41 B A7 404 €
AT A LA H O SEB AR T il Rt
AR WA C USRS BT S
Pirita B Al R IsAS « A7 B A A Sl
a2 A [ HA 9 S ) R -

(n) Cash and cash equivalents m) RERBEELZEY
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, Bl BB S H Y aAs T HB e - b
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other M5 ] P A 4 B 4 Al B A A - H
short-term, highly liquid investments with original b~ B R 2 5
maturities of three months or less that are readily SARA AT >y R R 5 O A
convertible to known amounts of cash and which 45 < A EL T ) (0 58 1B J g 7 AN
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in R) LA SRATIE S o SRATIESCAERR B
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are R AR N TR D B A R A R R B
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in N o Bl B Y WA G
the consolidated balance sheet. Cash and cash B RAAG o
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

(0) Share capital (0) B=&

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBEKR )

77

(p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of watch products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEETBERH@
(@ Contract liabilities (@ BHEaE
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer BRI AR AEF C & R O
goods or services to a customer for which the 18 (el A R 2 200 1 28 1) % 5
Group has received a consideration (or an amount B U ) AT o M T R ASE
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a VS . ot BRSSO AR
customer pays the consideration before the Group i A& A ARE AT % R IE
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract BIIRE (LR R 2 8 BERD o B AR
liability is recognised when the payment is made or A A SR M JEAT & #IRF R 2 WAL ©

the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

() Related parties (r BBAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: LRANAE T HVIEDL T - AR Bl A £
A R g
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s @ A LBGEEA LT A
family is related to the Group if that person: A BAR
(i) has control or joint control of the Group; (i) B E A 1 R et
[l 2 i
(i) has significant influence over the Group; (i) BALEEAE R
or 715 8§
(ili) is a member of the key management (i) A S A 4 £ ]
personnel of the Group or of a parent of ZEEEMERA
the Group;
Or iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan and the sponsoring employers of the
postemployment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEKR )

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(s)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) Sale of watch products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised

at the point in time when control of the asset

is transferred to the customer, generally on

delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide

customers with rights of return and volume

rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates

give rise to variable consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer
with a right to return the goods within
a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied
in order to determine the amount of
variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised. A right-of-return asset (and
the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Sale of watch products (Continued)
. Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be
provided to certain customers once the
quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified
in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely
amount method is used that best predicts
the amount of variable consideration. The
requirements on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied and
a refund liability for the expected future
rebates is recognised.

The Group do not have expected future
volume rebates and no refund liability is
recognised as at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022.

Other income

Building management services income and
shared services income are recognised when
the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEE )

83

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(v)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

(s)

W ATERR (4%)
)  HEIA

I8 JE AT 7 B SR Mg B B HEE
Tl SrIRF > BELBC B AR B 2 K I A
s AR AT REVA AR S > S
SRR AT LAA] SE T R RERERR o

(ty Borrowing costs t BREE
General and specific borrowing costs that are TR O i R S
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction R — R E AR IR
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised 56 F % A 7 A AR T A B
during the period of time that is required to complete BRI N EAAL o & BB ST
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. OB IR ] Y 5 77 ] A 4B S ) ok B
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take MR -
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary TEHRF 8 BRI & EAR E A ST 2
investment of specific borrowings pending their PREE TR Z R - ZHA A
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the B E AL 2 EFHOA IR o
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in JIr AT H A A RS T 3 A S8 ]
which they are incurred. i R N HERR. o

(u) Taxation (w WA
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and JIT A3 B 46 B0 S I e R A B H 2 A
deferred tax. e

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in income statement because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEESHBE )

(u)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEEHBEGR)
(u) Taxation (Continued) (w BB
The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities R IER T 7 I A i 2 R R R
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from AR A A T A [m] e A A HL
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of B AR T 2 T =X A 2 B
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 2o

amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for LA SR 1 R A ) B (7 SR
investment properties that are measured using the fair ZBEY R RIEEBET F - BRIk
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties B A B > 1 RIMERGE i% 5 W R
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless TE P2 7 2 1 B T Y o B PR W)
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is SR EE H A S ) EB R A
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable R > 529 e UL o AR B2 1 A SE55 H
and is held within a business model of the Group TR B I [R] 1 RS B B A% S5 S TN
whose business objective is to consume substantially RO A 21 > AR A % 5 W) 2
all of the economic benefits embodied in the A IR L SR E ) BRI A5 o TSR A
investment property over time, rather than through FE B > HI % 55 5 ) S A IR SE AL
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for JEUHE AR5 AT B A e o [m] ) 2 4 FELI) O
such investment properties are measured based on A FHE -

the expected manner as to how the properties will be

recovered.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions S TP 0 T R S o AL B B RO AL
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group B2y - ALEEBIERER S EMN
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing T EFHEE 129 BLE o B
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences 7 AN FE B A R ) R 2 A A
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are TRRIEMEGTAY - BN E A A S
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on oy MRREE E 2 TR
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the bk <z R A R TE R 2E RE
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net e

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when BTG L AT R ATt R BLIE
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current JAE BL VI T £ AR o Sl % B
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they — i 5 W R i 2 P AR A B LA
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation VA e o A R A 5 B L B B T
authority and the Group intends to settle its current e f iy - R AE B IH A X A AT
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. LR EES I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)  Employee benefits (Continued)

(1if)

(iv)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME
-

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant
will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period
to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Government grants that become
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(@) Going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon future operational performance
and the expected future operating cash inflows;
and the continuous availability of banking facilities.
Details are explained in Note 2.

(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

The ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

(c)  Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)  Determining the lease term (Continued)

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
See Note 29 for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the year, no lease term has been reassessed.

(d)  Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred tax for investment properties, the directors
have adopted the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(@  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, the income tax was
charged to income statement disclosed in Note 15.

(b)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets exhibit any indications of impairment. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use
of judgements and estimates. Management believes
that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the
above key elements in the value-in-use calculation
would not result in material additional impairment
charges.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2023 were in Notes 17 and 19 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(c)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including (1) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition
and location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
(2) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (3)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 March 2023 is disclosed in Note 18.

(d)  Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
have suffered any impairment. The Group reviews
goodwill for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the related carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amount has been determined based on higher of
value-in-use calculation and fair value less cost
of disposal. The calculation requires the use of
judgments and estimates.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 March
2023 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(e)  Impairment of trademarks

Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are carried
at costs and are not amortised. Management tests
annually whether the trademarks suffered any
impairment by considering the economic benefit
to be generated from trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management. Management determined the
financial budget based on past performance and
its expectations for the future market development,
which involved significant judgment and estimates.

The carrying amount of trademarks as at 31 March
2023 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 20.

() Deferred tax assets

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the tax
losses or certain temporary differences in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The estimate is based
on the projected profit in respective jurisdiction
and entity and the Group uses its judgement to
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing on balance sheet date. It could
change as a result of the uncertainties in the market
conditions.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets recognised
as at 31 March 2023 is disclosed in Note 28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRERME

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(g)  Fair value measurement

The Group’s unlisted equity investment was classified
as equity investment at FVTOCI and measure at fair
value using market approach with reference to the
price to earnings multiple of comparable companies
listed in the market. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about price to earnings
multiple, non-marketability discount, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty.

The fair value of the equity investment at FVTOCI as
at 31 March 2023 is disclosed in Note 21.

(h)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the balance sheet date.

The allowance for inventories was made for the year
ended 31 March 2023 is disclosed in Note 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being
revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of impairment loss) is disclosed in
Note 23.

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in South
East Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
respective group entities. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht, Renminbi and
Swiss Franc against the Hong Kong dollar.
The Group regularly monitors its exposures to
foreign currency transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MEEMBER A
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HBEEEEGE
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SFEEME S ()
The impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) before A B [ T 2 T B ) 9 T A I
tax that might be resulted from the reasonable A G PR R] e A ) 1T 5 R B
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates AL BRI BT R (5 18 A
against the Hong Kong dollar to which the HEMET -

Group has significant exposure as at the end of
the reporting date is summarised below.

2023 2022

Increase/ (Increase)/

(decrease) decrease

Increase in profit Increase in loss

in foreign before in foreign before

exchange income exchange income

rate tax rate tax

BRBE AT 3 A W i 1H

SEEE i, SMERER (g,

#9 32 tn (R4) R pll o

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Singapore dollar Brmk oo 5% 1,463 5% (874)

Malaysian ringgit FEARPYEE AT 5% (765) 5% (1,301)

Thai baht Fk 5% (5,172) 5% (5,424)

Renminbi NG 5% 839 5% 1,573

Swiss franc B 158 5% 8,636 5% 8,887
Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates b A1 B BE S 3 5% (2022
by 5% (2022: 5%) would affect the profit/(loss) 4 ¢ 5%) 1B ERBEAT IR R (s
before income tax by the same amount but in 15) 7 A A ) < B AELRE B 1] #Y)

the opposite direction. 2 X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

97

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE)
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ BIERMEZEE
(ii)  Interest rate risk (i) FIRE S

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances as disclosed in Note 24. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings
as disclosed in Note 31. Bank borrowings
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2023, if interest rates of bank
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points (2022: 50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit before
income taxes would have been HK$1.714
million lower/higher (2022: loss before income
tax HK$2.369 million higher/lower), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@) B¥EEREZE)

(iii)  Credit risk (i) 5 B

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
(mainly include deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables) as disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group'’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification at the
end of reporting date. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

S R 52 5 3 F 07 R REJEAT
FAL 51 B e 1R TR I 2 iR
KAGEE B AR A&7 e EE AR
RIS CHER M EE 2R
T > 3 B AL AE SRAT A7 s A K
B 5 B HAtE IR o

R MR 5 B EUR
G R AR B R MR R R
B > Bk 0 R R AR B85
i AT HETS A R > AR R
EREPUEIER > R H 2
SEAR ) B BT UL SR o 25
BT I BB B I IR T AR -

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ B¥EREZE)

(i)~ Credlit risk (Continued) (iii) 17 B 5 (FE)

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8AEH
REFR ERHMEERR
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-K& EZKR Ry Bt h% @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
BET BT BT BT BEfT

2023 20235

Trade receivables (note a) PEMCR 3 (3 a) - - - 71,921 71,921

Financial assets included in 4% 4 B LAtk

deposits and other SR
receivables (note b) (fif3k b) 49,125 - - - 49,125
Cash and cash equivalents e R &S HY 85,426 - - - 85,426
134,551 - - 71,921 206,472

2022 20226

Trade receivables (note a) FEQRR R (k@) - - - 83,655 83,655

Financial assets included in -~ 4454 B LAtk

deposits and other SR T
receivables (note b) (BH3E b) 61,619 - - - 61,619
Cashand cash equivalents ~ BL4: RBIA () 112,121 - - - 112,121
173,740 - - 83,655 257,395

Note: RFE -

(@  The Group applies the simplified approach for @ AR AL T Al
impairment of trade receivables, information WO R AR I B (L > DA 8 A R
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in T L BRI DR B R A B
Note 23. MR 23 o

(b)  The credit quality of the financial assets (b) AW A AE ¥ 4 B H At HE i B
included in deposits and other receivables are R BB A NI A ) HL
considered to be “normal” when they are not IR 2 S M EE 2
past due and there is no information indicating (ERE N RERIR/ S UN [
that the financial assets had a significant B s RS MR E 2 A5
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. BE YA ER] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HMBEBER )
(@)  Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ MBEBEE
(iv)  Liquidity risk (iv) BB B

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor A £ B 2 BOR 7y € W1 B 2% B i
current and expected liquidity requirements to LMz i) EewE - LA
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of DRAS B ) A 5 2 ) B 5 £k A LA
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the JRE A HL A0 B R B 2 T
short and longer term. T2 o
The table below analyses the Group’s financial NREURAEB 2 B AR
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings e HEAR B I AL R - AR e 4
based on the remaining period at the balance HHEAZZH AT R EH
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. HEAT T o TR R N ER B A
The amounts disclosed in the table are the FARIT B BT E -

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Repayable Between Between
on demand/ 1and2 2and 5 Over
within 1 year years years 5 years
EZRER/

£ 1225 R 2E5ER SERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT i R i

As at 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31R
Bank borrowing (note) RATE WD 355,548 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAR 56,629 34,154 8,813 -
Trade and other payables B9 B AR 138,543 - - -
550,720 34,154 8,813 -

As at 31 March 2022 1202243 31 H
Bank borrowing (note) BTER (WD 482,595 - - -
Lease liabilities HEARE 58,998 27,016 10,159 -
Trade and other payables B RAM R IR 172,574 - - -
714,167 27,016 10,159 -

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HREBRER )
(@)  Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HMERBEZE
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) B BB ()
Note: BiFeE

Certain bank borrowings contain a repayment on
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s
sole discretion. Taking into account the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate

A TR R R R RS
A ERAT A HEE AT OE o MRARA LR
P Y A5 B0 R o T B GRAT R = 0 R
& TERR ARG SRAT & AT (L
T HEZE SR B AE R > ST AR R TR
JE B TR % S BT K

PATR 73 M S AR A w2 3 1 Bl 4
Tt o A B B RS T # A

repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. The FIARIAEAT R
analysis below shows the cash outflows based on the
scheduled repayment. The amount includes interest
payments computed using contractual rates.
Between Between
Within 1and 2 2 and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
1T 1E2FA  2E35FR 3FHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LR ERAFT BT BT
At 31 March 2023 2023538318 129,122 95,003 27,795 128,260
At 31 March 2022 #20224¢3 A31H 234,876 41,474 80,795 140,289
(b) Categories of financial instruments b)) E=@MIBEDE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’OO£)
BT AT
Financial assets: SREE
Equity investment at fair FR V-2 1 HL At 2 THT A i 51 B
value through other 0 AR B
comprehensive income o 3,064 1,593
Financial assets at amortised cost: DVBESH BUAS T2 00 B Rl
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 B A R RR
and deposits R4 121,046 145,274
— Cash and cash equivalents — B4 RBLESEY 85,426 112,121
209,536 258,988
Financial liabilities: SEMEME: B
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: ~ DAESALAS 5|2 19 £ Al & £
— Trade and other payables — B 5 B A R AT IR K 138,543 172,574
- Bank borrowings —SRATER 342,848 473,876
481,391 646,450
Lease liabilities HERE 92,768 91,028

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities as disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet approximate their
respective fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio and this is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

6.

B EBREE (A

(]

(d

AT

AR & B R T 4
R 1 4 T 2 IR T (B A 1 2
IFAARR -

BErEH

A B ) A A B R PR A A
I AR A D 5 AR AR [ A 7 L
o bE i 5 A A SRR AR > ) AR I
IR B AR A DL S & R 2 R
K

Py T HERR BB AR K ARSI
A A B SO TR R A S B R 1
FUREEA ~ BAT B B 4R A L
AR -

ZIK%@U%E%E%{’EZ‘%%?E%ZW‘J%
o fi BT L SR AT VT S PR L E A R
nf%ﬁ o TR TR A AR (LR AR
Aié?ﬁ1f%§}ﬁﬂ‘z{m§ﬂ&3|5{m§bﬁ
5O WA RS EY RS o BA
Q'E'HE AE MBS EEABKRIIRN
MORE 4] -

The gearing ratio of the Group were as follows: AREEE S LRI
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT WA
Bank borrowings (Note 31) SRATEER (MHEE31) 342,848 473,876
Less: W
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)  Bi4x S Bl &S5 () (K 5:24) (85,426) (112,121)
Net debt IFHEBS 257,422 361,755
Shareholders’ funds R 424,052 378,146
Gearing ratio R 60.7% 95.7%

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(@)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group’s finance department leading by the
Chief Financial Officer (the “CFQ”) is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
finance controllers report directly to the CFO. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the CFO.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVHEEGR)
(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@ 2AFEEREE
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and A AR B ORI T g = A R B
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date BHE DU AR AL H > RS R
of the event or change in circumstances that caused =R -

the transfer.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: AN TR R 2 B dR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
#1E %28 F3E st

HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ok DTV 4 DR A P AT

Recurring fair value measurements ~ EEMALETE

At 31 March 2023 ®202353A31H
Financial assets StREE
Equity investment at fair value through ~ 4&/AT- (B H A2 it

other comprehensive income SUBRAI B E

— unlisted equity securities —J BT A R S - - 3,064 3,064
Non-financial assets FERMEE
Investment properties By

— commercial building —TEMT - - 297,900 297,900

- - 300,964 300,964

At 31 March 2022 2022534315
Financial assets tREE
Equity investment at fair value through ~ /A F-HE I AL 2 Hk 4

other comprehensive income FIRRI R I3 B

— unlisted equity securities = LA - - 1,593 1,593
Non-financial assets kEWEE
Investment properties HEWH

— commercial building — BT - - 283,100 283,100

- - 284,693 284,693

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for BN BEHATEFTEZET 2K
recurring fair value measurements during the year. 38 2 I A 3% o

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Financial assets

The valuation of unlisted equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
was determined using a market-based valuation
technique. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate enterprise value of earnings before
interest, tax, depreciations and amortization (“EV to
EBITDA”) multiple and price to earnings multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the market capitalisation
by the profits of the comparable companies. The
multiple is then discounted for non-marketability.
The discounted multiple is applied to the profit of the
unlisted equity investment to measure the fair value
at each reporting period.

Non-financial assets

The fair value of the investment properties is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by Savills
(Macau) Limited (“Savills”) independent valuer
which is not related to the Group. The Group’s
finance department reviews the valuations performed
by Savills for financial reporting purpose. These
valuation results are then reported to the Group’s
management for discussions and review in relation
to the valuation processes and the reasonableness of
valuation results.

The fair value of the investment properties were
arrived by using direct comparison method based on
market observable transactions of similar properties
in the similar conditions and locations of the subject
properties and adjusted to reflect the conditions of
the subject properties including property size and
property floor level. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. ADYEFEE
(c) Reconciliation of financial assets and non-financial (00 BEIBAFEFEZSEMEERSF
assets measured at level 3 SREEHER
Equity
investment
at fair value

through other

comprehensive Investment
income properties
BATE
BBREMEE
5 51 AR B9
BHRE REM*
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT
At 1 April 2021 #20214F4 1 H 1,874 296,700
Revaluation deficit transfer to equity 22 TR RE T A e R (281) -
Change in fair value recognised in TR AR R Y AP (52 )
income statement - (13,600)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 202243 H31H K&20224F4 H1H 1,593 283,100
Revaluation surplus transfer to equity 2 AR A i 1,471 -
Change in fair value recognised in TR R R AR AT E)
income statement - 14,800
At 31 March 2023 M202353H31H 3,064 297,900

B () A RA A
2023 FFAFHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Valuation processes

The Group’s finance department is responsible for the
fair value measurement of financial assets required
for financial purposes, including Level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial department reports
directly to the CFO and the audit committee (“AC").
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and AC at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting
periods.

The main inputs used in fair value measurement by
the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

J price to earnings multiple

o EV to EBITDA multiple

J non-marketability discount rate
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Financial assets

The most significant unobservable input is EV
to EBITDA multiple of 1 (2022: 1), and non-
marketability discount rate of 32% (2022: 31%). The
lower the EV to EBITDA multiple, the lower the fair
value of the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The lower of the non-
marketability discount rate or non-controlling interest
discount, the higher the fair value of the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

If the non-marketability discount rate increase/
(decrease) by 1%, it would result in (decrease)/
increase in fair value by HK$45,000 as at 31 March
2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVHEEGR)
(e) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value () fHEWMAMEREXNFENBRERGE
(Continued)
Non-financial assets A
Significant Range of Relationship of
unobservable unobservable unobservable
Valuation technique(s) input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
ED L FABE FOBERBARE
BRI LIPN ¢ BARBZEE BEAHENBE
2023 2022
Direct comparison method based 1. Unit rate From HK$35,000 to From HK$34,000 to 1. The higher the unit rate,
on market observable transactions HK$217,000 per ~ HK$207,000 per  the higher the fair value
of similar properties and adjust to square feet square feet
reflect the conditions of the subject 2. Frontage 2. The larger the shop
property. frontage, the higher the
fair value
REEYEN TBREN S XA EME 1. BAER B¥ERA PR 1. BT -
A ERR EEL IURE /R S B¥35,0000E  EW34000CE A TEE
IR o #%217,0007 #4£207,0007C
2. #li 2. HRTEER - e

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

109

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group’s financial information mainly
from business nature and geographical perspectives.
From a perspective on business nature, the Group has
two reportable segments, namely watch retail and
watch wholesale trading segments. From a geographical
perspective, management mainly assesses the performance
of watch retail operations in (i) Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and (ii) the rest of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods from watch retail
segment and watch wholesale trading segment. Sales
between operating segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions.
The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”). This measurement
basis excludes unallocated income and net corporate
expenses.

Unallocated income represents dividend income from
unlisted equity investment and gain on disposal of assets
classified as held for sale. Net corporate expenses mainly
represent corporate staff costs and provision for senior
management bonus. Unallocated assets represent property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and right-of-
use assets at corporate level, unlisted equity investment,
deferred tax assets and cash and cash equivalents.
Unallocated liabilities represent lease liabilities, other
payables and accruals at corporate level, bank borrowings,
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIERH)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE2023F3A31HLEEE

Watch retail
EEHRTE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest  wholesale
China of Asia trading Total
RAR =M Bk
TEIRE  HeME  #HBER a&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B BEArx  BEAx
Revenues from contracts with ERMBRMEEDE15H
customers within the scope BEANTFAORE
of HKFRS 15
- Gross segment — /AR 274,023 255,136 457,342 986,501
- Inter-segment | - - (181,047) (181,047
Sales to external customers HETIRES 274,023 255,136 276,295 805,454
Timing of revenue recognition LON AL
— Ata point in time — {1 IR i 274,023 255,136 276,295 805,454
Segment results DEEE (14,713) 6,546 40,975 32,808
Unallocated income EHON 79,184
Net corporate expenses SEEATEOT (31,148)
Finance costs A LA (21,273)
Profit before tax BRBLATR R 59,571
Income tax expense FIr 58 3 (8,466)
Profit for the year FERF 51,105

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) BZE2023F3A318 LFE #)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest wholesale
China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total

B BAR EEY | B
hE AR HEBHE MBER AAE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr  BEfr  ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Addition of non-current assets: WHIEREERE

— property, plant and equipment  — 43 ~ 3% Kk (2,645) (3,201) (582) (796) (7,224)

~ right-of-use assets — R (27,314) (35,190) (9,726) - (72,230)
Depreciation: {r -

— property, plant and equipment  —4¥73  #8 Kkt (3,664) (3,820) (476) (10,731) (18,691)

— right-of-use assets — (24,667) (26,958) (4,166) - (55,791)
Impairment of: Wl -

— property, plant and equipment  —#1% + ## Rk (320) - - - (320)

— intangible assets — WG - - (3,878) - (3,878)

~ right-of-use assets —ffi R (1,897) (3,673) - - (5,570)
Fair value change of investment B &Y A TFEES)

properties 10,600 - - 4,200 14,800
Reversal of provision for inventories £ £ 4 [l 6,821 109 1,244 - 8,174
Segment assets YRR 353,007 139,400 227,068 343,648 1,063,123
Segment liabilities e (78,261) (57,497) (81,857)  (415,445)  (633,060)

1 1 1 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIERH)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE20224E3 31 H IR

Watch retail
EREE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest  wholesale
China of Asia trading Total

MR CEV) Fi573
HE K pE HepwE iR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB BT BT B¥fx

Revenues from contracts with BRPBHEEERE15H

customers within the scope BEANTFAORE

of HKFRS 15

- Gross segment — /AR 242,664 198,748 392,540 833,952

~ Inter-segment — 3 - - (141,445)  (141,445)
Sales to external customers HETIREF 242,664 198,748 251,095 692,507
Timing of revenue recognition A FE R ]

— Ata point in time — TP {1 R ] A 242,664 198,748 251,095 692,507
Segment results A ERE (72,797) (1,381) 45,839 (28,339)
Net corporate expenses SEEAT B (43,223)
Finance costs B LA (19,275)
Loss before tax BB BIE B (90,837)
Income tax expense P 3 (15,623)
Loss for the year FEFE (106,460)

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued) BE20224E3 31 H IR EE (38)
Watch retail
EHZE
Hong Kong,

Macau and Watch

Mainland Rest wholesale
China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total

B BAR EEY | B
hE AR HEBHE MBER AAE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEffr  BEfr  ERfr  BRfx  BRfix

Addition of non-current assets: WHIEREERE

— property, plant and equipment  — 43 ~ 3% Kk (5,159) (2,387) (296) (1,276) (9,118)

~ right-of-use assets — i E (36,011) (21,585) (661) - (58,257)
Depreciation: {r -

— property, plant and equipment  —#13 ~ H&# Rk (4,099) (5,499) (600) (14,710) (24,908)

— right-of-use assets i diiliA (29,108) (36,803) (6,540) (3,178) (75,629)
Impairment of: Wl -

— property, plant and equipment  —#1% + ## Rk (1,086) (14) - (9,367) (10,467)

— intangible assets — WG - - (2,722) - (2,722)

~ right-of-use assets — A (8,051) 7) - - (8,058)
Fair value change of investment B &Y A TFEES)

properties (10,700) - - (2,900 (13,600)
Provision for inventories fretits (2,275) (773) (2,756) - (5,804)
Written off inventories frEdiE (757) (34) (74) - (865)
Segment assets YRR 375,063 138,205 254,438 414,324 1,182,030
Segment liabilities AR (88,008) (53,216) (83,857)  (572,201)  (797,282)

1 1 3 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARZHBEFR )
Geographical information b B B
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by 223t 5 73 A 4R WSO B o B SEARAN T

geographical area are as follows:

Revenue Segment results
L'ON T EBRAR
2023 2022 2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BWffRx BT

Hong Kong, Macau and Tk~ WP IR R
Mainland China 383,180 341,221 435 (53,451)
Rest of Asia CEVIBEN 731 421,076 351,158 34,306 28,742
Europe Eeill 1,198 128 (1,933) (3,630)
805,454 692,507 32,808 (28,339)
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other e M I 40 A A ) I R B AR GRS
than equity investment at fair value through other 2 T Wi 25 90 BE 11 B 5 35 I R SiE G TH
comprehensive income and deferred tax assets) by EEBIN T
geographical area is as follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China 7% ~ ¥ K B oK 510,010 509,516
Rest of Asia Y HL B i 85,862 77,059
Europe B 37,117 36,965
632,989 623,540
The revenue information above is based on the locations of i AR TS AR I 2 T R A 4 Y o
the customers.
These were no revenue transactions with a single external SRR s M IEAR [ RN B B A
customer which amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s AAEFBCA [ 10%8% DA | (20224F : 48) o

revenue during the year (2022: Nil).

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDEIER A
Geographical information (Continued) HwEER )
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities e BRI RN A A TR B A L HERB A -

at the beginning of the reporting period:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Sales of watches 5 g 6k 1,280 2,164
Performance obligations [ ESES
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery JBEH AT IR S AT B R A > AR EZE L)
of the goods and payment is mainly on cash and credit BlasifE A REE > MIEE SR K
card settlement, except for wholesale customers, where ST B E SRR 1202343 A 31
payment is due within credit period from delivery. As at F A 780 6 R 4 AT RIS 2 sl 20 AR ) 25
31 March 2023, the remaining performance obligations JEUR)FE I AR (] 2% — AR BRLA N 15 20 10
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are part of contracts — B3 o AR e AR R A HE I 251 5 R
that have an original expected duration of one year or less, RETLTEE » W2 543 Bl i 38 55 (B o
the transaction price allocated to which is not presented
according to practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
9. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) 9. Hftulgzs (E1E)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Exchange losses BEE 52 5 18, (454) (1,303)
Fair value changes of investment BEEWI RN )
properties 14,800 (13,600)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, B - B
plant and equipment B[N eVl Fic) 67 (232)
Gain on disposal of assets classified Hh B P A B R AR
as held for sale (Note 25) (Bf5E25) 78,689 -
Gain on termination of leases #KIFFE A # IR 213 3,803
93,315 (11,332)
1 1 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. OTHER INCOME 10. EAKA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Building management fee income MEFE AL 2,580 2,460
Interest income FLEA 252 220
Rental income fHAEHA 4,859 5,594
Dividend income Jil3SNIL N 495 -
Rent concessions TR 1,960 9,299
Shared service income ILZRBULA 14,400 14,400
Government subsidies (note) R A Bl (B 5T 7,452 8,424
Sundries MEIE 2,158 2,552
34,156 42,949
Note: RiGE -
These primarily represented government subsidies in relation %A R RS S R AR AT B BN - LA
to COVID-19 subsidies of HK$6.947 million (2022: HK$4.955 AT R B~ 6 A T EE T 3 R R 7 Y
million) granted by the Government of the Hong Kong Special et R B 17 1 S A8 2 B A R s 6. 94 7
Administrative Region, Macau Special Administrative Region, (20224F « #EM4.9550H ) -
Malaysia and Singapore.
11.  FINANCE COSTS 1. HBRA
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Interest on: FE
— bank borrowings —RATEK 15,127 9,118
— lease liabilities —HEAME 6,146 10,157
21,273 19,275

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax has been derived after

12. BRBADEF (BR)

AL M B BRBLRT A (B 1R CAIER G

debiting or (crediting) the following items in the income A Wi R LURIEE -
statement.
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Auditor’s remuneration: A BRI 5
— audit services — IR 2,110 1,896
- non-audit services — IR 776 585
Cost of inventories sold and raw A7 B A B M EHE AR
materials consumed 440,309 368,770
Depreciation of: e -
— property, plant and equipment —Wy3E - R Kt (BFE17)
(Note 17) 18,691 24,908
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — R E (fsE19) 55,791 75,629
Employee benefit expenses (Note 13) i B AR A S (B 3E13) 195,704 181,270
Fair value changes of investment '8 ¢/ EYNSEIEE )]
properties (14,800) 13,600
Impairment loss of: WAH
— property, plant and equipment —W3E - R Rt (BFsE17)
(Note 17) 320 10,467
— right-of-use assets (Note 19) — i REE R (fsE19) 5,570 8,058
— intangible assets (Note 20) — e & (FEE20) 3,878 2,722
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, B - B S
plant and equipment ieti, (5 18) (67) 232
Gain on termination of leases FALTHE A Al (213) (3,803)
Lease rental in respect of land and R 1 b B A =
buildings AR A
— short-term lease payments — R A K 27,151 13,480
— variable lease payments CIE-Zitk~ghEs 5,303 3,920
— rent concession (Note 10) — &% BEE10) (1,960) (9,299)
Impairment of trade receivables (Note 23)  FEUi & ) B3O8 (H (F5:23) - 2
(Reversal of)/provision for inventories FrEE (AR IR E) W (8,174) 5,804
Inventories written off R - 865

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EEEFZH
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Salaries and allowances M SO 177,738 164,509
Pension contributions less forfeiture BARE UK bR EwE AR
utilised (note a) B0 (fika) 14,936 14,858
Others HoA 3,030 1,903
195,704 181,270
(@) Pensions-defined contribution plans (@ BIKkE-—EHEMHRETE

The Group operates a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors of the Company.
No further employees and contributions have been
added to the ORSO scheme after the set up of MPF.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
and employees are calculated at rates specified in
the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme and ORSO scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Meanwhile, relevant employees of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong contribute to the local pension
schemes, contributions to the local pension schemes
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of the
local pension schemes. The assets of the pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, forfeited
contributions totaling HK$0.295 million (2022:
HK$0.275 million) arising from employees
leaving the ORSO scheme, were utilised to offset
contributions during the year.

HZE20004F11H30H &1k > A 4EH
R 45 Tk 2 R AR B0 A6k 1) 2% 5 S T R
BEAGEARTEE - H20004FE12H1
HOH > AR 4 [ 5% 57 58 ) A B 4 w1
B (R FHE ) > AL M0 A G
8 B (BIFAAFAITH#ES) HE S
B o BERE AT B NI R > BREEIR IR
1 37 A0 34 R B Bl o AT [ KR
B 1) R T A B A AT R R
T 4w R U BT R ) KRS - T
TR 5T S 2 s B A 48 [ 1) B 2 4 PR
A s EHEsa Ty -

B AN B 2 /i > A SR P
Je A B S R AR w1 A {1
Ao TR R R AR R B AR
B KFREE o B R Gl 2 B SR
S EE A - A R S
REAREM -

HME2023F3A31HILEER > EE
LR R 03 i 2 Bk S AR AR R B it
R H0.2951A B0 (20224F « ¥
0.27546HI0) - © BBl LA B 4 A
HEFK o
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2023 FFAFHR

118



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 13. EERAZE D
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the A B A A [ 4% e s TN LR
highest in the Group for the year include one (2022: —#(20224F : — %) #F - HAMEE
one) director whose emoluments are reflected in the 15 EL A RE 140 Hp s o AR A JE
analysis shown in Note 14. The emoluments payable F - FLBR B e BT Y 4% (20224F ¢ 1Y
to the remaining four (2022: four) highest paid Z) N T Z BT

individuals during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Basic salaries, allowances and B 4 HER KB 55
benefits in kind 5,327 4,774
Performance bonuses RIBEAL 4,657 5,334
Contributions to pension plans BRI K 192 210
10,176 10,318
The emoluments fell within the following bands: o NI o 21 NG o (B N
Number of individuals
AE
2023 2022
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) FrEMA R )
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 %%1,000,001 ﬁi%%],SO0,000ﬁ 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 %%&1,500,001 ﬁ@%*ﬂkLOOO/OOOﬁ - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 %H%ZOOO,O(N ﬁ@%ﬁ%LSOO/OOOﬁ 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #HE2,500,001 0 E#EH3,000,0007C 1 3
Over HK$3,000,000 #eHE3,000,0007C 1 | 1 -
4 4
1 1 9 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. ESEANRER
(@ Directors’ emoluments @ EE#ME
The remuneration of every director of the Company is AR FEISEEM ST

set out below:

Emoluments paid or payable i respect of a person's servces as a director,
whether of the Company or ts subsidiary undertaking;

RATGENRATCNESIESRNY:

Emoluments

paid or payable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

Remunerations  the management
paid or payable ~ of the affairs of

Basic salaries, ~~ Contributions inrespectof ~ the Company
alowances,and ~ toretirement  Discreionary  accepting office orifs subsidiary
Name Fee  henefitsinkind  eneft schemes bonus asdirector undertaking Total
SGEL L
FATGENR
Bxffd AIREEN
Befe 2 Rife FEL S HfpeR
iz e AR 5 BEEL  ESRUME Ritime a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT 2o i Fiivd kv REfR ot

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZ20233R31R

Joseph C. C. Wong ) ] 100 750 4 - - - )
Kwan ChiKin, Wallace Mg 80 1,589 65 194 - - 3,648
Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes (i) B 5 - - - - - 5t
Ho Chi Kin, Jeff ff5eeE 135 - - - - - 135
Lai Kai Ming, Ricky (i) ) 135 - - - - - 135
Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas ()~ 5T - - - - - - -
Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus )~ ATy 8 - - - - - 8
585 2309 106 194 - - 494
For the year ended 31 March 2022 B%2002463/131H
Joseph C. C. Wong i Al 100 750 Iy - - - 891
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace Bie 80 1548 34 179 - - 3455
Kwong i Hang, Agnes i)~ BDAfri 13 - - - - - 13
Ho ChiKin,Jef & 13 - - - - - 13
Wa Chi Mn,Lawrence i)~ 5 i - - - - - 36
Lai Kai Ming, Ricky () Rid 7 - - - - - 79
Suriyan Joshua Kamjanapas ()~ 5 - - - - - - -
56 2,29 75 179 - - 4751

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

14.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(o)

Directors’ emoluments

(i) Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.

(i) Dr. Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes has retired by rotation
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company upon the expiry of her term of office on 16
August 2022.

(iii) ~ Mr. Wu Chi Man, Lawrence has retired by rotation
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company upon the expiry of his term of office on 31
August 2021.

(iv)  Mr. Lai Kai Ming, Ricky has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 31 August 2021.

(v)  Mr. Suriyan Joshua Kanjanapas has been appointed as
the Company’s non-executive director on 20 October
2021. No directors’ remuneration was paid to him in
the capacity as director for the year ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022.

(vi)  Ms. Cheung Ho Ling, Honnus has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022, none of the directors waived their emoluments,
except for Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong waived a portion
of his salary of HK$750,000 for the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: waived salary of HK$750,000).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services (2022: Nil).

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

14.

EEENRERS )

(@)

(b)

(c)

BEEME D

(i) HRIESCA R A BT B

(i) B AT LR 2022488 H 16 HAT
Ji£h i e o (AR AT AR A R S JF AT L
o

(i) WIAESCHEA R 20214E8 H31 HAEHA
Jih 0 I i {1 2B AT A 2 ) 98 7 JE AT B
H#gi o

(iv)  ZEROASEAER20214F8 31 H#EZ
(LB TS FEAT I S -

(v)  ECERRRSEAA20214E10 H20 H #Z%
ERHARAFFATHFEDSE - HE2023
HEIHA3TH &2022F3H31 H B4
BE > B0 4 DL SE T 5 0 T

4 o

(viy SRATE L ER202248 16 H#EZ
AL B AL w S FEAT I 5 -

HE20233H31H &202243 A31
H AR > AMAEAT o] 8 = 0 SE M 4
[ A 4 e 2R A 2220233 H31 H
1E A 3 ik 3 HL R 4 3 4 7 50,000
JG (20224 + EFH & 750,000

Jo) °

EERABANREERER

AR WA R U AT AT
AR MR A S BB AR A1) (20224F M) -

RENEERBAF=SXN2RE

BE2023F3H31HILAERE > AN
S 4 A R IR S 1T AT AR A =0
AT (20224 : ) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

14.

15.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)) 14. EZENRER )

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (d) FBBRUNES ZEEFEE2SZEFMNEE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies REBMBERASBRAZEN  £EX
corporate by and connected entities with such REMR S 2 ER
directors
During the year ended 31 March 2023, there are no BAE2023F3 431 HIEF S > HEEL
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements B SR E R R B
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate T E e 2 tn N2 B~ MR K
by and controlled entities with such directors (2022: M58 55 %k (20224F - M) -

Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EBEXRS G WRIAARMEAFZ
arrangements or contracts
Except as disclosed in Note 34, no other significant BRI RE34 88 & b - A4 L N B4R
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation EERE > AN AN SR T AT AR ) e AR 4
to the Group’s business to which the Company was B 2 S5 T A W) 2 B 4 )
a party and in which a director of the Company had HERHPHAERFGZ EELY -~
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, AT o
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15, FrSHiH

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT

Current tax A HARLIH
— Hong Kong profits tax — FH AR 3,649 2,841
— Overseas profits tax R AV I 5,314 5,113
— Under/(over) provision in prior years — WA ERER D (R Z) 98 (356)
9,061 7,598
Deferred tax (Note 28) HEERLIA (Fif5E28) (595) 8,025
8,466 15,623

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

15.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15, FrSBis (4)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is 2023 4F B B HE A5 Bl T ML 8 A T 1 LB i )
calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated HBLH16.5% (20224F + 16.5%) w15 © M5
assessable profits for the year. Taxation on overseas FIAFBE T3 ARDRAF A0 b w8 R i 1) 4 A
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable B A8 [ 1) 708 R B R o
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax AL BRI BT A (k48D T 515
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using A BE T > B2 JHL P 45 i [ 1Y 78 D
the applicable tax rates, being the weighted average of tax ChNRESTE- 24 2%) it 381 B B TELA 2200 -
rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group TEWR -
operates, as follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBLHTHR A, (5 12) 59,571 (90,837)
Theoretical tax at weighted average FEIMRET-155813.12% (20224F -
rate of 13.12% (2022: 17.85%) 17.85%) T 7158 i) M5 Bl 16 7,817 (16,218)
Tax effect arising from: Bigs B
— Non-taxable income — TR A (19,611) (9,257)
— Non-deductible expenses — RAT B B 52 7,772 12,106
— Recognition of temporary differences — ERRAT AT A DU RR 10 T IR 1
not previously recognised T (961) 827
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised ~— —fiff FH{:4F A fERR 1Y B T s 18
tax losses (2,402) (2,412)
— Tax losses not recognised — RHERR A BLIE B 1R 16,721 30,844
— Tax reduction — Bl I B A (18) (46)
— Others — HAth (950) 135
— Under/(over) provision in prior years — AR (R 98 (356)
Income tax expense FRABISZ 8,466 15,623
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 13.12% TNAEF 48 AR R F513.12% (20224 -
(2022: 17.85%). The decrease is caused by changes in the 17.85%) © W0 )7 B i AS £ 3 i 454 1B R 1)
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in R Je 2 ) 1) s 1) A T S Bl T 2K
the respective countries.
1 23 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.  EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 16. BREF(HR)
Basic Ha
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing BRIEAZA], (f518) LA RS2 m)HE 5 1
the Group's profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of A NBEAG AL B R, (RH8) BR A T 3178
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary fiiliialik RSl IR =

shares in issue during the year.

2023 2022

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity AN TR A AL R,

holders of the Company (HK$’000) (f518) (¥ AT 7T) 50,795 (106,716)
Weighted average number of ordinary E BT 4 BT 1

shares in issue (thousands) (AT BERT) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable 7/ w4 i 547 A MEAG 55 %

to equity holders of the Company EAZA, (1) (HsAl)

(HK cents) 4.85 (10.20)
Diluted e
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31 BA202343 431 H K202243 31 H IL4F
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are the same as the B B REREER (B8 6 B A
basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts as there were no BN (ks 8) S REAHR] - PR 7 AR 45 BE 1
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issues during two Nf7 A PR A R A
years.

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

17.

125

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% WBREE
Freehold, Equipment,
leasehold leasehold
land and improvements
buildings and others Total
hEERE
T HE RfE - HE
THREF BEXRRHEM B
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
BT BT BT
Cost R
At 1 April 2021 202144 H1H 331,692 258,802 590,494
Additions RE - 9,118 9,118
Transfer to assets classified as W AR B
held for sale (Note 25) (MtE25) (64,325) - (64,325)
Disposals/written off R - (20,027) (20,027)
Exchange realignment e 58 7 (2,197) (481) (2,678)
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 ##20224F3 131 H 202244 1 H 265,170 247,412 512,582
Additions wE - 7,224 7,224
Disposals/written off R - (16,623) (16,623)
Exchange realignment EE i, 75 45 (1,810 (2,540 (4,350)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A318 263,360 235,473 498,833
Accumulated depreciation and RItMERAE
impairment losses
At 1 April 2021 A20214F4 A 1H 82,164 242,854 325,018
Charge for the year ALY 11,820 13,088 24,908
Transfer to assets classified as R AR
held for sales (Note 25) (fzE25) (23,014) - (23,014)
Disposals/written off /R - (19,787) (19,787)
Impairment loss (note a) BlE (faka) 9,367 1,100 10,467
Exchange realignment T 5t % 3 (1,404) (354) (1,758)
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 120224E3 431 H 202244 1 H 78,933 236,901 315,834
Charge for the year RAFEYE 10,958 7,733 18,691
Disposals/written off HeE R - (16,616) (16,616)
Impairment loss (note a) WM (fiEa) - 320 320
Exchange realignment e 575 %5 (676) (2,403) (3,079)
At 31 March 2023 R202353H318 89,215 225,935 315,150
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A318 174,145 9,538 183,683
At 31 March 2022 202243 H31H 186,237 10,511 196,748

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:

(a)

As at 31 March 2023, carrying amounts of retail stores
assets represent property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$151.392 million (2022:
HK$162.121 million) and HK$70.336 million (2022:
HK$68.686 million) respectively.

The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable CGUs and the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs is determined with reference to their value-in-
use and fair value less costs to sell. Management carried
out an impairment assessment for the retail stores assets,
including property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets, which exhibited an impairment indicator.
Management performed impairment assessment for under-
performing retail stores such as stores making a loss and
early closure of stores before the lease term. The carrying
amount of the retail stores assets is written down to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. The estimates of the
recoverable amount of retail shops were based on value-
in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections
based on the forecasts approved by management covering
the remaining tenure of the lease, with 13% (2022: 13%)
discount rate.

As a result, during the year ended 31 March 2023,
impairment of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$320,000 (2022: HK$10.467 million)
and impairment of right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$5.570 million (2022: HK$8.058 million) were made
as their carrying values are not expected to be fully
recoverable. Impairment loss was included in other
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for
the recoverable amount as follow:

° Revenue: based on estimated sales with reference to
recent monthly performance in all regions.

J Running cost: based on the estimated change related
to the Group’s cost saving plan and measures.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for
the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 31) amounted to
HK$145.718 million (2022: HK$155.421 million).

17.

I - MR RRE D)

(a)

202343 H31H > FEEHMKYE -
s B Al B i ) RE Y 7 Y B T L 43
A s 151.39240 B0 (20224 & ¥
#162.127140 8 J0) A #70.33 640 850
(20224 : #:%568.6861H L) °

I A [ A LA ) 2 T i 5 48 v vk 3
G R A o T AT I 2 B A AR LA S
BBEZELTYEZAMO A EMER S - &
PR S B (B R A 0 T G A (R
W ~ W B DA B R ) A T IRk
ERRAG o 45 S0 3 s 4R Y 05 S 2 FH B 1 4
T B PR A R B R Z 45 ) il A T I (R
Al o i 28 i A A 7 ) B T PR LA 5T
AL [ A o JU) 516 R T O &5 T i [m]
AEE o T RO AT T g [l A A ol
{E(E R - I ARE A P e 25 ]
ol A3 A7 1 0 I T P BB A v o BB
FI513%(20224F 1 13%) °

R > # % 202343 H31HIE4EE > 9
¥ B G IR E A A5 320,000
JC(20224F + #¥10.4671A #T) K fi FHRE
B AE A B N5 5 704 T (20224F ¢
W 58.05811 B IT) o H A L i (A 14
T2 2 B0l i A R o WA RS IR E FTA
AR A AR R A HARAS S o

T S ] < R ) P ABL (B R B o (0 T Y 3
BT

. WA = ARSI AT b i e A A ) i
R BUN R -

o EIEERUAR - ARPRACAL M AR
W R A B R A R

202343 H31H » AREFEYE - B K
FR A T (Y M1 4571841 B8 JT (20224
155,42 140 B 0) B R 45 SR 7T AT
BRSNS I SRA T B o

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWZE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT
At 1 April R4H1H 283,100 296,700
Changes in fair value A PAHSEE) 14,800 (13,600)
At 31 March R3HA31TH 297,900 283,100
The investment properties were revalued at the end of the % PG W) FE A SR o R ST B S E AR
reporting date by independent professionally qualified B RHfEAE o
valuers.
(@ Amount recognised in consolidated income (@ REVERUERTEINEHE
statement for investment properties
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Rental income FHAUA 3,684 3,709
Direct operating expenses from properties 4G ILA Y ZEZ
which generated rental income EIREE SO (343) (519)
3,341 3,190

1 27 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRME

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Lease arrangements

Commitments for minimum lease payments
receivable on leases of the investment properties are
set out in Note 33(a).

The Group leases out retailed stores under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years,
with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond
initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the
lease contracts contain market review clauses in the
event the lessee exercises the option to extend. The
leases of retail stores contain minimum annual lease
payment that are fixed over the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessees’ option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

Pledge
The Group’s investment properties have been

pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings
(Note 31).

18.

BREWMRE )

(b)

(0

HEZRH

ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%mﬁmh
A EE33(a)

IR i

ALETE BB T A TEE
TR - B ORI o FHEE R 2
2RI RINA B ERER -
TEARRH AT AEAHHERS - RZ BT
BRIEE TR - WETE
T SR & A0 A A B A ] E
4 4 B B AR A B ATk B

mR A E SO EEETRA A
IR B MR > SRR g R
B PEmRZ SN R - A A
AL AR PR > A5 A TR Ry 2R AR
NTREHESAR I 2 3 -

EEL

$E@m&§%%aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬁ
BERAT Bk (M3 1) -

B () A RA A
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. FREEE

2023 2022

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT Fioki K s

At 1 April R4H1TH 77,593 123,990
Addition wE 72,230 58,257
Termination of leases HILHESGH (1,715) (23,941)
Depreciation charge for the year AR (55,791) (75,629)
Impairment losses (Note 17 (a)) WAE (f5E17@) (5,570) (8,058)
Exchange differences [ifE 58,2550 (1,079) 2,974
At 31 March A3A31H 85,668 77,593

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following

types of assets:

i

Ll w8 A o B P R DL BB Y

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T AT T

Land use rights - Hb i A 517 1,032
Property: Wk

— office premises — A E 14,358 7,286

— retail stores — B 55 70,336 68,686

Motor vehicles 1R 457 589

85,668 77,593

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Lease liabilities of HK$92.768 million (2022: HK$91.028
million) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$85.668 million (2022: HK$77.593 million) as at 31
March 2023. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

The Group has early adopted the Amendments to HKFRS
16: COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021, and applied the practical expedient introduced by
the Amendments to all eligible rent concessions received
by the Group during the year. Further details are disclosed
below.

For both years, the Group leases various offices and retail
stores for its operations. Generally, lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 3 years, but may
have extension and termination options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options, the future lease payments
during the extension periods are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure to
these future lease payments is summarised below:

19.

EREEE (&)

202343 H31H > #%92.7681H # 0
(20224 : #¥91.02810 # o) il & & &
EL 4L [F] 75 585,66 811 M G (20224F © #E
77.593 40 B J0) KA B £ R 0 T DL
TR o %S R W v N AT T B o M
AR A E B R R U R 45 PR
PN il < g0 N G i = W ENEOD R (i i

=]
AR e

AR SR B 4R R A A B B R RIS 1 6
SEZAERT © 20214F6 1 30 H A& B A B R ek
o B A B AH < T > Sl AR SR R AR 4
JEE WS MR B4 T A R A < T % B T
AHLE W B R ik o i — R DR
AT -

RN AEBHEZ ML ELE
TRETEE - — M s, HEAAE4E
FE3AE B E FEMFRTSL o MR BA T SOt
WY IE R 2 A 1k B4R HE o AR AR 00 5 % 4 1l
FLHER T > B R I Y AR [ B
o 78 i REL AR ) R A A T AR ) [
RIEWF - A G P & 49 10 28 I 2 &
A m] s AT RO

o A AL R A AR A RAR SR RS
] 2 AL 6 1 SBE4R ME o JBE PR MT AT 9 17 DL
o ARG R A AT AR S AT R4 5
RSB - DUHR S R o
AR B AL B AR F AT AG 2 1 A B E
REAT (L EfR I8 4R HE o i A 4 [ 3k 5 B e
TEAT B AE R AR HE - SR U [H] 1A 19 R SR A
BEffRA g AHERMNGRERN - 2%
ARAHE AT SRR T SR B Rl T

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

19.

Lease liabilities
recognised (discounted)

ERAEEE (&)

Potential future lease
payments under extension
options not included

in lease liabilities
(undiscounted)

TEETHEaEPES

R BREEETBENRR

HESE BR) HEMRCRER)

2023 2022 2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT AT T BT AT T

Office WAE 9,670 2,095 9,174 12,592
Retail stores ZEIEH 5,072 2,968 11,449 9,323

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 March 2023, there has
been no such triggering event.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note
32(b).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group leased
a number of retail stores which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the
retail stores and minimum annual lease payment terms that
are fixed. These payment terms are common in retail shops
in the regions where the Group operates. The amount of
COVID-19 related rent concessions recognised in 2023
is disclosed in Note 10. The amount of short-term and
variable lease payments recognised in consolidated income
statement for the year is disclosed in Note 12.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BEA > AR N 042 o] A B N A K
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B B4 AL i KRR B W A EORHE M RE32(b)
B -

202343 A311HERE - AEMMEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. |EEE
Technical
Know-how  Trademarks Goodwill Total
BERM 5 [5ES Fob)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ikt ATV {413 TN (44 IR (4 4 I

Cost B
At 1 April 2021 202144 H1H 74,895 84,688 10,426 170,009
Exchange realignment HEE 5 2 7 - 476 129 605
At 31 March 2022 and 4202243 431 H %20224

1 April 2022 471H 74,895 85,164 10,555 170,614
Exchange alignment EE 31, 2% - 208 846 1,054
At 31 March 2023 2023538318 74,895 85,372 11,401 171,668

Accumulated amortisation and ~ BiHFERRE
impairment loss

At 1 April 2021 #20214E4H1H 74,895 41,655 - 116,550
Charge for the year A BE - - - -
Impairment losses W - 2,722 - 2,722
At 31 March 2022 and 202243 H31H %20224F

1 April 2022 4A1H 74,895 44,377 - 119,272
Charge for the year AR 5 - - - -
Impairment loss BE - 3,878 - 3,878
At 31 March 2023 2023538318 74,895 48,255 - 123,150
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2023 R2023%3A31H - 37,117 11,401 48,518
At31 March 2022 202243 H31H - 40,787 10,555 51,342

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for technical know-how

In 2015, in order to secure the supply of mechanical
movements in the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA,
a Swiss watch movement manufacturer, and recognised
an identified technical know-how of HK$70.816 million.
Technical know-how has been fully amortised as at 31
March 2020.

Impairment assessment for trademarks

The carrying amount of trademarks of HK$37.117 million
(2022: HK$40.787 million) represented the trademarks of
self-owned watch brands. Management assess annually
whether the trademarks exhibit any impairment by
considering the economic benefit generated from the
trademarks. The recoverable amount is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budget based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@)  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 2% (2022: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 5% (2022: 0%) which was considered reasonable
with reference to subsequent sales growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 15% (2022: 16%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of trademarks to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

Impairment losses on trademarks amounted to HK$3.878
million (2022: HK$2.722 million) were recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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HREMAVRERR

Fh AR H AR 00 85 8% 2R ALIE 5 AR 4R [
20154 W iy - 8% BR 2E FE FICATENA SA >
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is
attributable to the watch wholesale trading operations.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
performed by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined the financial budgets based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 2% (2022: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 5% (2022: 0%) which does not exceed historical
growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 15% (2022: 16%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no
impairment on the CGUs containing goodwill (2022: Nil).

20.

BIVEE#)
AERER

7 AR R S5 20 R 20 I 2 A S T T 1
bR A A DARNHE SE 7 SRS R S
M5 o B g A A BALAS 1A T Wi ] < R AR 8 £ P
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S S S B o B AR A BB TR
BB LUF BT Al R AR A

s R () E BT

(@) JHLLHE B R 8 T AR E A A B4R
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(b)  FIAE i B 047 TE A BB A B R R A
5% (20224 : 0%) » WAH AR
MR-

(c)  FA A B 4 vt = TE B 0 B A B B R
15% (20224 © 16%) ° sZ RN B2 7 i
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EHREEE Ry o b A R AE AT
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21.

22.

EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

21.

BEAVEHEBEMZEWESIRNKRG R
&

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Equity investment at fair value through TN V(B2 HAt 2 T Wi 4 51 AR
other comprehensive income Lh)iiepEra <y
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 3 ElT/A A B4 (2 F(H) 3,064 1,593

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the fair value gain
in respect of the Group’s equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$1.471 million
(2022: fair value loss of HK$0.281 million).

At B A B A W AR A E A 1 AP
(B 4 HLAt 2 T W45 1R > T ey A AR S 1
0 i A i SRS YRR

202343 A31 HIF4ERE > A HAb 2wk
T THE 5 1) AN 4 o1 42 2 T (475 408 JH At 2 T i
3o 470 B 14 B 480 Y 1 58 Bl i ik 2 i
1.47 1A # 0 (20224 + A FEE B E IR
#0.2811HE D) -

INVENTORIES 22. FE&
2023 2022
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT
Raw materials J AL 173,847 187,109
Work-in-progress e i 10,827 11,683
Finished goods BB 345,871 395,154
530,545 593,946
Less: provision for inventories W AR (308,418) (333,267)
222,127 260,679

During the year, allowance made in prior years against
the inventories of HK$8.174 million (2022: HK$ Nil) was
reversed due to consumption on inventories.

The cost of inventories sold recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$440.309 million
during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$368.770
million).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BEZREMEKERR

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T AT T

Trade receivables, gross W Wk > 48R 71,942 83,678
Less: impairment loss (note b) W WE A (D) (21) (23)
71,921 83,655

Other receivables HoAth JRE U R 3K 7,499 7,298
Deposits s 41,626 54,321
Prepayments P IH 8,600 5,223
129,646 150,497
Less: non-current portion W FERBERY (17,220) (14,757)
Current portion EDE Y 112,426 135,740

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on

AR 5L H 0 3 M i I kB B R R e

invoice date is as follows: I
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
0-60 days 0-60K 31,916 39,081
Over 60 days 60 KL 40,026 44,597
71,942 83,678
Note: FFeE -
(@)  The Group engages designated import and export agents (@)  AREEEIE MR E 0D A - R b

JB N T I S VR A A ML B N T o B
T REAST 3t 11 AR A & 80 T e [ S 1) S
SR GEARIREREH - HE
20234F3 H31H » A 5E [ e IS RK S RE AT
W A R S A ot o 11 AR A &5 B 2
HEM32.90210 # 0 (20224F « #E¥533.253
{H#IT) ©

for the importation of products from the subsidiaries in
Hong Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The
balances due from and due to the import and export agents
are settled on a back-to-back basis, and such balances are
repayable on demand. The Group’s trade receivables and
trade payables include balances due from and due to the
import and export agents of HK$32.902 million as at 31
March 2023 (2022: HK$33.253 million).

Io3% MR Wi R JRE ) 3 1 1 A B A R A 5 AN
H 45T H YL 5 MR 8 52 B LR
60K (20224 1 60K) KI5 &1 o

Other than the balances due from the import and export
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60
days (2022: 60 days) from the invoice date to its trade
receivables.

B () A RA A
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23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by using a provision matrix to measure ECL. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, and customer type). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off when the
counter party is in severe financial difficulty and there is
no realistic prospect of recovering e.g. under liquidation or
entered into bankruptcy.

Meanwhile, the Group applied general approach to
provide for ECLs for financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables under HKFRS9. The Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data in calculating the expected credit loss
rate. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group estimated
the expected loss rate for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables is insignificant.

Movements on the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

23.

B 5 R H AR

WEeE - ()

(b)

A B TP 5% i B 7 T 488 4 P A 47 3k
M7 - ARHE TRIE S - ATy
HLTR HAT AR I DU (1) n 35 b e DA %
FE R RRP A 2 A% S B 2
I TR S o AH B S ST RE i
B~ BN R BB (B DA B i i H AT
TEA BRI 2 BB S w] SRR
BRI DL LA B R AL IR DL o — g
F o EACH BT R R A B IR T L
TSR % AN RE R I W (52 5 3 A A
AR B ) BB MACIRAR & T LA -

L[] IR > A B [ M P — A 9 A s A
5 St YE B SR 9 T S 4 4k 4 M At
JRE AT R R ) B S R TR e A -
AR AR A S FURAE SR RIS R S
AR Sl T I T 2 A T R A R
4o JR20234E K 20224E3 A31H > AR4EME
A RT3 4 e H At R SO T JUT (46 1) 4 Tl
EE M TE A R 4R Rl AN E K -

TN 5 MR S R M S B I

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T

At 1 April 4 TH 23 20
Impairment loss AE A - 2
Exchange realignment e 5% 230 2 1
At 31 March W3H3TH 21 23

Trade and other receivables included amounts due from
related companies of HK$4.988 million (2022: HK$4.850
million). Details of amounts due from related companies are
disclosed in Note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EZRHEMEBYIRR
Note: (Continued) A =
(d)  The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are () B G B AR R 2 B T (E e W 2 5
denominated in the following currencies: e
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars i 50,324 53,314
Renminbi NG 31,372 35,021
Singapore dollars Brimigoe 14,343 19,169
Malaysian ringgit FEAR P B A 23,127 31,531
Thai bahts B 1,848 2,784
Swiss francs By -1 B 869 945
Others Fofty 7,763 7,733
129,646 150,497
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RERREEEY
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Cash at banks SRATBLE 85,227 110,516
Cash on hand FHB & 199 1,605
85,426 112,121
Note: RifiE: -
(@)  The above balances mainly represent cash at banks. Bank (@  LHBREEEE RIS o SRATIFAKEREH
balances are deposited in banks with sound credit ratings to TAFTIONRAE T RP AR AR O SRAT A7k - DA
mitigate the credit risk. (SR

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)  The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

following currency:

24.

RERREESEN H)

WEeE - ()

(b) BEXBEEEVIEERZIWT

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$’000

BT TV

Hong Kong dollars i 15,874 15,865
Renminbi N 1,589 1,458
Singapore dollars EIIE T 34,460 44,925
Malaysian ringgit FEAR P B4 22,052 34,929
Thai bahts B 6,928 6,092
Swiss francs Fig 11 B 738 910
Others Fofty 3,785 7,942
85,426 112,121

(c)  The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the

PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 25. DERFEITHHERE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Land and buildings transfer from property 8 [ #73£ ~ $#h KX
plant and equipment Bt T A - 41,311

On 28 January 2022, the Group entered into a provisional
agreement with an independent third party seeking to
dispose one of its properties and anticipated that the
disposal would be completed in August 2022. Further on
10 February 2022, a sale and purchase agreement were
executed, both parties have reached a consensus on the
selling price of HK$120 million.

The disposal was completed on 10 August 2022 and gain
on disposal of HK$78.689 million was recognised in “other
gains/(losses)” (Note 9).

202241 H28H » Z4E B Bl — 24 1857 5 =
FEI LR E E W > sk i P
—IEY) 2 > TR R TR 2022 4F
8H M - HAR > By B 12006 5
JUEE AL > R20224E2 H10 B E5sTE &
=

A ESHIAD R20224E8 H10H %2 -
I 25 40 HE M5 78,6981 B TR [ Hoftb e 28,
(B 1) | R R (Ff9) -

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. BAE
Number of
shares of
HK$0.1 each HK$'000
B B
0.1 7THY
et B AT
Authorised: LR
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R20214F4H1H > 2022463 H31H »
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 20224F4 1 H %20234E3 431 H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT BRI
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R20214E4H1H > 202243 H31H
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 20224F4 1 H %20234E3 431 H 1,046,474,025 104,647

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. RESERVES 27. fR#E

Property,
plant and
equipment
Share  Revaluation ~ Exchange revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
itk
BtvaR  EffRR  EXBR  EfBE  REEN 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT dERfx EW #WE ERfr R

At1 April 2021 0214 TH 1,977 (377) (53,681) 403,664 31,270 362,673
Loss for the year FEREH - - - - (106716)  (106,716)
Other comprehensive loss for the year 2 mER - (281) 2,377) - - 2,658)
At31 March 2022 202243 A31H 1977 (658) (56,058) 403,684 (75,446) 273,499
At1 April 2022 202244 H1H 1977 (658) (56,058) 403,084 (75,446) 273 499
Profitfor the year R - - - - 50,795 50,795
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year - 52 ks / (H9) - 1471 (6,360) - - (4,889)
At 31 March 2023 2023538318 1977 813 (62,418) 403,084 (24,651) 319,405
Nature and purpose of reserves REZEER AR
(@) Share premium @ R
Share premium represents amount paid by J A9 Y A 6 S R PR Gk Y T S A5 1 2 R
shareholders for capital injection in excess of par AT -
value.
()  Revaluation reserve (b)  FEf
Revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net A A 8 R s R R LA
change in the fair value of financial assets held at (B A HC A 2 T A i o <6 2 Y
FVTOCI at the end of reporting date and is dealt with F-E R B o AR R EE4(h)
in accordance with the accounting policy in Note W2 Gt BUOREEEE o
4(h).
1 41 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.

28.

RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 4(d).

Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve

The property, plant and equipment revaluation
reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
land and buildings held for own use in Note 4(e).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities is as follows:

27. fRt@AH)
REZEER AR A
(c)  FESR R
e 5. {6 455 A TR 6. 5 i 1 S s

B R e A 2 BE S22 o AR 9 AR %
BFaE4(d) P st R E I -

(d) Y i RGN

WIS ~ WA Bt ELAS il 2 B r
R RE4(e) P 2 A A 2
o s BT BT T BOR B o

28. EFEHIEA
RSB IH 2 SR AE R BT AT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Deferred tax assets R ALl TH 7,091 7,046
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE L IH A (26,278) (26,690)
(19,187) (19,644)
The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as RICHIIANR H &2 8 -
follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
At 1 April R4A1H (19,644) (11,689)
Credited/(charged) to income statement &1 A /(%) st % (H5E15)
(Note 15) 595 (8,025)
Exchange realignment iz i) (138) 70
At 31 March A3A31H (19,187) (19,644)

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28. EEEBIR (A
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A DR IR A T e B R B ) O 5 R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of ARIRI BB m R i A SR AEHE ) A

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets ELERAEE
Provision for
unrealised Other
Depreciation profitin Other ~ temporary
allowances  inventories Tax losses provisions  differences Total
BERR
2REH Hf

fEER WER  HEER @ HERE  EHKEZE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000
Bffn  RRffn  EEffn BRBfx ERffn  ERffzn

At1 April 2021 202144 1H 183 4714 6,069 3,809 1,296 16,071
Charged to income statement M & (99) (1,131) (6,069) (1,587) (216) 9,10)
Bxchange differences R EH - 91 - (8) (6) 77
At31 March 2022 202283 H31H 84 3,674 - 2014 1,074 7,046

At 1 April 2022 120224 1H 84 3,674 - 2214 1,074 7,046
Credited/(charged) to income statement 71,/ (FR) i % 57 1297 - (917) (248) 189
Exchange differences ERER - (26) - (73) 45) (144)
At 31 March 2023 R2023%38318 141 4,945 - 1,224 781 7,091
Out of the unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,225.096 JIt 4 0 A 1S A 2R R R 2 R T R B T s
million (2022: HK$1,273.266 million) carried forward, B BT ,225.09640 BT (20224 ¢
an amount of HK$976.137 million (2022: HK$935.551 #¥E1,273.26610 8 0) > Hhis¥5976.137
million) can be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining fA# 7T (20224 : #W5935.55 117 #57T) 7 fiK
HK$248.959 million (2022: HK$337.715 million) will PR A5 > HARIE H248.95911[ # T (2022
expire in the following years: A HEWE337.71548 # D) AETE T 51 R JiE

I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28. EIEBIR (A
Deferred tax assets (Continued) BB IREE ()
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
In the first year 1A 38,096 79,620
In the second year H24E 37,661 53,387
In the third year Exkes 50,049 37,955
In the fourth year A 72,370 35,511
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive S5 E 1 04F (B4R E B 4R) 50,783 131,242
248,959 337,715
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of A T AE — B IR [H] A 78 A s 1500 B g 2 =)
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have 3 FLAR W] AE 6 725 15 8 S0 1L LA 1 HC
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered B R 48 - S A 5 S AR k% 45 s 1H e
probable that taxable profits will be available against RRARIE R 7 o
which the tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIEAE
Revaluation
of property,
Depreciation plantand  Right-of-use
allowances equipment assets Total
ERE T
TERE RREER ERREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT R AT R
At 1 April 2021 4202144 1R 5,623 21,622 515 27,760
Charged/(credited) to income statement e/ GEA) Mg 189 (1,284) 18 (1,077)
Exchange differences E b 2 48 - - 7 7
At 31 March 2022 #20224E3 H31H 5,812 20,338 540 26,690
At 1 April 2022 #20224F4H1H 5,812 20,338 540 26,690
(Credited)/charged to income statement (FEA)/Hnbriliss % (1,724) 1,248 70 (406)
Exchange differences HE 52 - - (6) (6)
At 31 March 2023 #202353A31H 4,088 21,586 604 26,278

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HES&E
2023 2022
Present Present
Minimum value of Minimum value of
lease lease lease lease
payment liabilities payment liabilities
Ri& BEHEE R RiEHE

BERE AEZERE  HEIE SUHZEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATT BT EWT WP

Minimum lease payment due: B AR AR B8 -
— within one year —15R] 56,629 51,681 58,998 55,338
— more than one year but not exceeding ~ — 14 {H24E R
two years 34,154 32,418 27,016 25,712
— more than two years but not exceeding ~ —2F & H54F A
five years 8,813 8,669 10,159 9,978
99,596 92,768 96,173 91,028
Less: future finance charge T R S (6,828) N/A (5,145) N/A
Present value of lease liabilities AR 92,768 92,768 91,028 91,028
Less: Amount due for settlement within 128 A B A
12 months (shown under current (RREB BN 25
liabilities) (51,681) (55,338)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121 H & 2| 414558 441 41,087 35,690
The lease liabilities are denominated in the following HE A AR EEENT
currencies:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars ki 34,658 41,079
Renminbi N 7,519 13,575
Singapore dollars BrmygoT 29,274 18,661
Malaysian ringgit TGP A 18,942 14,881
Thai bahts Fk 2,375 2,832
92,768 91,028
1 45 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. BEZRHMENERRN
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Trade payables (note b) JREASH B2 5 Bk (Bt k) 64,763 71,388
Contract liabilities (note ¢) HHIARE HEc) 1,345 1,280
Other payables HoAth EAH BRER 24,826 60,431
Accruals JEFH 56,481 47,535
147,415 180,634
Note: B 5
(@)  Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 (@) FEATE 5 HRER 2 S - 2d R R HERR A 30
days of recognition. HRsAt -
(b)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice (b) k5 H AT Y RE AT B2 B MR R MR 6
date is as follows: T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEATT WA
0-60 days 0-60K 29,090 34,348
Over 60 days 60K LL 35,673 37,040
64,763 71,388
Trade and other payables included amounts due to related B2 S e A BB AT R S 458 AT BTG 2 ) 3K
companies of HK$0.940 million (2022: HK$19.267 THUEH0.9401f H5IT (20224F « #51519.267
million). Details of amounts due to related companies are B85 TT) o JEAT B B 2 IR 15 A M
disclosed in Note 34. 34455 -
(c)  Contract liabilities include advances received from ()  HHIBEEAFE RS AT B ok 2 S U AY 4
customers. The increase in balance of contract liabilities is I o G &) A EREG I B A & E AT
due to the increase in advances from customers as at year HIERAhN T EL o
end.
(d)  The trade and other payables are denominated in the (d) 5 M EA EAT I E R B 2

following currencies:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars iy 70,380 90,572
Renminbi NG 26,142 28,441
Singapore dollars EDIIE) TTH 7,449 7,703
Malaysian ringgit FEATY R 475 7,975 11,833
Thai bahts Fk 5,994 7,379
Swiss francs Fig i B 7,602 7,968
United states dollars ESH 18,497 23,475
Others HoAthy 3,376 3,263

147,415 180,634

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31.  BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITERK
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Bank borrowings, secured SRATER > KA 342,848 473,876
Note: BFGE -
(@) The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: (@  ALEESATE SRR AR
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Repayable on demand and within 1 year JRETESRAB I Sy — 42 I 342,848 473,876
(b)  The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for the (b)  EIERAS SRAT DU HOA SR B SRAT (5 S 10 &
Group’s bank borrowings are: FEMREE DT
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BFRE BT AT T
Property, plant and equipment LE B S1 G 17 145,718 155,421
Investment properties EitdLyE S 18 297,900 283,100
Assets classified as held for sale A R FEE A A 25 - 41,311
443,618 479,832
(c)  The bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in ()  AEEIRITERIEICEHE -
Hong Kong dollars.
(d)  As at 31 March 2023, weighted average effective interest (d)  A2023%3H31H - RATEFKIINHET-15
rate per annum for bank borrowings was 3.7% (2022: 1.8%). FMRAER R 53,78 (20224F ¢ 1.8JH) ©

1 47 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 32. RERERERME
(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (@ ®MEETHELNERED
Analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities ASER D BT 7 4R 5 Rl T B A Y
and the movements in liabilities arising from TR B il 3 ) BT A AR 5 B Y 70
financing activities for each of the years presented: B
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings Total
HERE RITER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
AT T AT T AT T
1 April 2021 120214E4 A 1 H 156,519 512,797 669,316
Cash flows Bl (99,392) (38,921) (138,313)
Non-cash flows FHET = 30,717 - 30,717
Exchange differences [ A5 3,184 - 3,184
31 March 2022 202243 H31H 91,028 473,876 564,904
1 April 2022 20224 H1H 91,028 473,876 564,904
Cash flows Bl & (67,432) (131,028) (198,460)
Non-cash flows FHEHE 66,215 - 66,215
Exchange differences BEE b 25 56 2,957 - 2,957
31 March 2023 $2023F3H31H 92,768 342,848 435,616
(b) Total cash outflow for leases by HEZRESRHAZRE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for FEAGEE B SR ERT AR ES
leases comprise the following: HEREWT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Within operating cash flows P TR T B B < U B A 36,640 18,258
Within financing cash flows A I ) B R A 67,432 99,392
104,072 117,650
These amounts relate to the following: LR AN
Lease rental paid AT E S 104,072 117,650

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. COMMITMENTS 33. 7R
(@) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (@ THAHENEXHE(XREEAERY
is the lessor) HA)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of AT B AR T 08 SRk R A
certain land and buildings are as follows: WA e AT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Investment properties REMHE
Commitments for minimum lease ASE B AN AT SR N
payments receivable in relation F1%) % A e I MR W EL <6 A 2
to non-cancellable operating I
leases are payable as follows:
— Not later than one year — 14K 3,534 4,404
— Later than one year but not later — VR E54EN
than five years 384 3,918
3,918 8,322
Properties LJES
Commitments for minimum lease A BTN AT AR N
payments receivable in relation to F18 A A e I TR Wi RELAEL 2 A
non-cancellable subleases of operating ~ #HUIF :
leases are payable as follows:
— Not later than one year —14ER 1,107 479
— Later than one year but not later — 1B H5ER
than five years 185 230
1,292 709
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group b)) TABENEERS (NEEEAK
is the lessee) HA)
The Group entered into certain short-term leases A A 8 By s T RN AR AR G AR RT
for office and retail shops. As at 31 March 2023, FITHA) o 202343 A31H » 5%%
the outstanding lease commitments relating to these e 2 T T T A B ) R R AR
office and retail shops are approximately HK$13.569 ARIEX Ry s 13,5690 B (20224F -
million (2022: HK$20.717 million). HEW20.717108) -
1 49 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRME

34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, Yee Hing
Company Limited held 855,200 shares of the Company
through its subsidiary Active Lights Company Limited. 55%
of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company
Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the
trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust, therefore deemed to be
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the
Trust’s interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

(@) Significant transactions with related parties

Apart from disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following is a summary of the
significant related party transactions carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The related
parties are entities which have directors in common
with the Company.

34.

BEBALRS

202343 A31H &2022F3H31H > 3%
LAY FR 2% w8 388 [ 8 2 F] Active Lights
Company Limited$#H 42 7]855,200
f » Klayze Holdings Limited A 25—y
EEst (MfErt)) 22t A B iEaRELE
FRA T A& 34T B 2 55% M4 o ¥
Bl e BEet 2 Zam A WOl Bl
15 R FEBLAT BR 28 ) 2 A 25 1 A 7
855,200 B il 25 o

(@ BRERBALETZIEAXRS

Ik B 5 3 FLA R 0 BT 4B 4 > TS
Ty A S B BELAT B N 2 TR BT A T 1Y
HRZHME > L JIRA L
H O SEH P AT o BRI A R R B
PASSIE: e R A DNy

(i) Provision of services to related companies () [ B2 AR R T

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT

Building management service E SR ON i FEEY
income (note a) 2,580 2,460
Shared service income (note b) FLEZRAFWA (B5E b) 14,400 14,400
Rental income (note ¢) e A (i) 3,130 4,292
Royalty income (note d) FrRTHESE B (FTd) 608 133
20,718 21,285

B () A RA A
2023 FFAFHR



151

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERARME

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

(Continued)

(i)

Provision of services to related companies
(Continued)

Note:

()

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a renewal agreement with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yee
Hing Company Limited, for the provision of
the following services for the period from 1
April 2022 to 31 March 2025 (2022: 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2022):

(i) contract administration with respect to
contracts entered into between MPIL
and third parties from time to time;

(i) property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(iii)  management of the property manager of
Stelux House; and

(iv)  other miscellaneous administrative
services.

The fee for the provision of the above
services was agreed at HK$215,000 (2022:
HK$205,000) per calendar month during the
agreement period.

The Group provided administrative services
to a related company which has directors
in common with the Group. Shared service
income was charged at cost basis allocated
based on the counterparties’ usage of each
type of service, taking into account factors
such as headcount and the number of stores.

The Group provided leasing services to related
parties which have directors in common with
the Group. Rental income was charged to
related parties based on the occupied area
ratio times total actual costs incurred.

The Group provided licensing services
to related parties which have directors in
common with the Group. Royalty income was
charged at 10% of the amount invoiced by
suppliers or vendors of the counterparties.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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34.

BEBALXS @)

(@

ERBBATETZEARS #)

(1)

11 Bl 2 I P2 IR 7 (7))

0

7 AJE 1 A O R ) B 3 L
A PR | A e N | B EE
WERERRAF ([HEE])
R 20224E4 1 H £20254F
3H31 H MBI HE LR IRES #T
SR (20224F 1 11201944
H1HZE20224F3H31H) =

()  PHEEELLS <5 RIEET
S AR Z A RT
s

(i) WEALHBELHE
(=g

(i) EHHELHESOY
EEHAE 5 M

(iv)  HAATERE -

ARG R e A > Rt
it IR 5 0 7 B 2 R T
H#215,0007C (20224F -
#:H#205,00070) ©

AR [ 1] BELAS S 1 5 A 3 0
A B N R A
B o L2 B B AR AR %
2 5y 3 77 3 4% IS 114 JE
H #8518 B TN BORE i 3
4 B R AR

AR [ 1) LA A P A 3L 1)
) DN N
B o < AR 55 A Hb 1H A5
ofe LI [ 7 AR Y BT R AR AR

1) [ e A A
AR [ 1) LA A P A 3L TR

T B A R A
FFTT RS o o R 0l i
N T2 A% B 7 B 58 ) 3 2 Ak
JRE T B L 1 2 BB (A 10 %
IR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BEBALIRS ()
(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@ HEAEBBAIETZEARS #)
(Continued)
(i) Purchases of services from related parties (i) G BN LA B R
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Rental expenses (note a) 43 (K 5Ea) 9,150 10,487
Lease management expenses (note b) & & 2 32 ) (F5kb) 420 420
9,570 10,907
Note: R3E -
(a)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the @ AR ARSERIE T HE AT

SR 31 A7 Bl B\ T S AL R
ok - DI AWZE - TR
8 R BR A E R

Group entered into tenancy agreements
with the following related parties for office
premises, stores, warehouses, showroom and

car-parking spaces: i :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
MPIL Uik 7,743 8,437
Other related parties HoA A B AL 1,407 2,050
9,150 10,487
(b) A related company provided lease (b)  —FAT B R AR A ] 4R

(LA B BB o $RALRESE
5 14 B T LR T w9 1K) 42
BUEWCE R ©

management services to the Group. The fee
for the provision of such services is charged at
pre-determined amount during the agreement
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. BEMALRE ()
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEEBEEALZENER
The balances due from/to related companies as B 523 K3 0 7 45 85 1) B WA B JE A+F I e
disclosed in Notes 23 and 30 are unsecured, 7 ) T ) 3CTE 5 I AIE P~ A S B
interest-free and repayable on demand. The related SRABER o BRI/ )45 BLAC SR B 7 A 3L
companies are entities which have directors in )38 2 T -

common with the Group.

() Key management compensation (0 FEEEEHRM
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000

b 3 AT

Salaries and other short-term employee 4 S A 1A g & 8 71

benefits 4,838 7,226

Contribution to retirement benefit scheme ARG H {5 106 115

4,944 7,341

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. SAREE
As at 31 March 2023, a subsidiary of the Company has 202343 H31H » AL ][R B85 2w 18]
secured various performance bonds to its landlord of H A F 8 ) G 26 Rt E p 4R 1L A R
certain retail shops and suppliers, details as follow: i o REEAR
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000

bl 3 AT

Security given by banks for performance  #RATH& L1 JE £ (775 &5 (-

bonds 7,202 5,296
At 31 March 2023, the directors do not consider it A202353H31H » EHEEW AR Al bk
probable that a claim will be made against the Group YE PR 1] A G M 4t FR 3R A T RETE o

under the above guarantees.
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36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 36. AREEEGBRFAFEEDR
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company RAEEEER
2023 2022
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff5E BT AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary B 2 W % 37 - -
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE ST BfF 88 2 W 0 a 766,848 766,848
Trade and other receivables & 5y Je HoAth FES AR 2k 294 215
Cash and cash equivalents B4 Bl aE MY 2,038 2,046
769,180 769,109
Total assets EERE 769,180 769,109
EQUITY e
Share capital Jie A 104,647 104,647
Reserves ftifts b 34,714 34,714
139,361 139,361
Total equity IR
LIABILITIES 8fE&
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 B H AR EAT R K 2,013 2,578
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST o e A w3 E a 627,806 627,170
629,819 629,748
Total liabilities BEH8%E 629,819 629,748
Total equity and liabilities REREERE 769,180 769,109

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 27 June 2023 and was signed on its

behalf.

Joseph C.C. Wong

A

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

T RATEA

W (E20234E6 H 27 At 5B AN T

HERAMK -

Wallace Kwan Chi Kin

o s

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

TTIEHH L BB

B () A RA A
2023 FFAFHR
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36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 36. AAIEEAGBRHEEEDR D
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: R

(a) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b)  Reserve movements of the Company

(a)

BB REZR A ©

b)  AFIHMEES)

JRE e % B A A T 2 ) ) R R SR -

Share Retained
premium profits Total
RAEHE REEF R
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
WA AT AT
At 1 April 2021 202144 H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year FNER - - -
At 31 March 2022 202243 A31H 1,977 32,737 34,714
At 1 April 2022 R2022F4H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year N - - -
At 31 March 2023 72023%3A31H 1,977 32,737 34,714

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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S
37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. XEMBATE

The principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 and 31 March B E2023F3 431 H K&20224F3H31H » &

2022 are: R0} AR U,
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ ERITRA EBfERENE I
operation Principal activities Number Value
HMRYL SEh  TERE B®  SREE 2023 2022
InvestmentiZ &
Stelux Holdings International Group ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited SR AT s ESTr
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HKS$1 100 100
FOLT G AR A i basidie AP
Stelux Investments and Properties British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited RIS Rt 1578
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
be I Agils SR 1%
CC Group (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
KRR SRR 157
Stelux Watch Group (BVI) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
LR ba<idie (BT
City Chain (Bermuda) Holdings Bermuda Investment holding 12,000 Us$1 100 100
Limited ARE BEHER (ES[
Stelux Watch Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding 2 HK$1 100 100
Limited &b R b
Boxen Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Trademark holding 1 Us$1 100 100
SRR it 17
Property 1%
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
il B Y i ESIEc oAb
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited it ESI4 10070

OB () A RA TR
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37.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. EEMBAT )
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued ~ attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ BRTRA SEFMEEENE DL
operation Principal activities Number Value
HRAL SEh  EEXR B8 SREE 2023 2022
Property (Continued)
NE (R
Stelux Properties Agency Limited Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HKS$1 100 100
DtEREARA R ik management L AP
ESNeLY &1
Retailing and tradingZ &R E 5
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
G TRA T it BT 007
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
L) N HHEEE 187
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited 1A BEHEEE TR
I R () A R 5,0007C
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S§1 100 100
A HEEE b
City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited #E HREE 1007
210,000 Baht100
10025k
Pronto Watch SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Hit: Sk 6 1,000% 1
il
Solvil et Titus SA Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
it k8 1,000 £
il
CYMA SA Switzerland Watch distribution 100,00 SFr1 100 100
Bit: B Hi Lk
Lissignol Sarl Switzerland Watch distribution 200 SFr100 100 100
Bit: Sk 7 1005 118
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37.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. EEMBAT )
Particulars of Percentage of equity
share capital issued ~ attributable to the Group (%)
Place of incorporation/ ERITRE EEFERENE O
operation Principal activities Number Value
MY S TEEH E®  SREE 2023 2022
Retailing and trading (Continued)
TERESZ (@
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited B licensing EST
T BRREA AL
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HKS$1 100 100
BESA AT il management N AD
g L el
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
TR A R ] &  EYi] 107
Stelux Trading (International) Hong Kong Watch distribution 2 HKS$1 100 100
Limited i L EY] b
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte  Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S§1 100 100
Limited Hmg gk Hrne o
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
o UL SR 187
Universal Geneve SA Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt management and 1/000%f
distribution i
Sk (RS 2 I 7
Catena SA Switzerland Manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100 1000
}\:ﬁj: movements 1}{lﬁj:i\£alz

TSRS

B () A RA A
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37.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. XEWBRE G
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid up capital ~ EBEFHEERNE L
SR St TEEH BRER 2023 2022
Retailing and trading (Continued)
ZERES ()
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) The PRC (foreign-invested ~ Watch retailing, trading HK$248,000,000 100 100
Trading Limited commercial enterprise) and related services HE#5248,000,0007C
Bt R A RAR O ERRE GRS SEEE - E5 R
MR R
Note: s -
(@  Non-redeemable preference shares (@)  ANnIEREECR
(b)  100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a (b)  TO0%HE % 145 88 % B HE K LA B A R i HE
right to purchase 12% of equity interest HiE 1 2% I HE
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